2017 ONA CONVENTION MEDAL

The image for the medal is from this picture of Berlin & Waterloo Street Railway Car #10. Car 10 was received from
the Ottawa Car Co. on March 23, 1906. This double trucked, double ended 38'6” car was of wood construction
and seated 40. The car cost $6,400 CAD and entered service on April 17. It is shown here on King Street (Berlin,
later Kitchener) at what was then Foundry, later Ontario Street. The medal will be struck at the Mississauga Mint
Ltd., and will have our traditional obverse. See the Nov.—Dec. 2016 Ontario Numismatist issue for more history on
the B. & W.

[designed by Judy Blackman, medal image by Henry Nienhuis]

Medal mintages:
Silver: 40
Brass: 40

Copper: 100




2017 ONA CONVENTION MEDAL

[by Judy Blackman, medal image by Henry Nienhuis]

The idea for our 2017 ONA Convention Medal originated out of frustration with the road construction in preparation
for the Region of Waterloo Rapid Transit System which will connect the three major urban centres of the Cities of
Cambridge, Kitchener and Waterloo. The RTS consists of a Light Rail Transit (LRT) between Conestoga Mall in the
City of Waterloo and the Fairview Park Mall in the City of Kitchener (19km); a Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) between
Fairview Park Mall in the City of Kitchener and the Ainslie Street Terminal in the City of Cambridge (17km), and 22
stops along the 36km transit corridor. The LRT features electric trains running along tracks in a rapidway separate
from regular traffic.

Having grown up in K-W, | fondly remember trying to get on and off the electric trolleys running up King Street on
tracks. So it feels like we are turning back the clock, and once again we have tracks running up our busy streets.

The 2017 medal first design originated from this 1917 picture of the excursion organized by the local Board of
Trade and the Kitchener Manufacturers Association to explore the possible development of Port Dover as a
: commercial freight port, connected to the Lake Erie and Northern

Railway line. The electric street train traveled from Elmira and then
P stopped in Kitchener to pick up this group of businessmen. The
A excursion was reported in the 16 and 17 October 1917 editions of
¢ the Kltchener News Record and the 16 and 19 October 1917

i enough in this picture and a more suitable image was needed. The

S information pictures in this story are courtesy of the Kitchener

\ J Public Library (esp. Karen Ball-Pyatt’s Historically Speaking) and
8 TrainWeb.

The picture then chosen for the medal is from this picture of Berlin
& Waterloo Street Railway Car #10. Car 10 was received from the
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medal, the mint production process may require some minor
.. squeaking to the design, but you get the idea.
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The Berlin and Waterloo Street Railway Company was incorporated in 1886, securing a twenty-five year charter and
franchise. The charter allowed the company to operate for twelve hours daily except Sunday. Principal owners of
the company lived in New York City and sent as their representative, Colonial Thomas M. Burt to build and manage
the line. Construction of a horse car railway was commenced almost immediately with the line opening for service
in 1888. Regular service was given with a horse car leaving each end of the line every half hour, when the weather
was good, and less frequent in the bad weather. Within a year, the company owned eight open and eight closed
cars, three large covered sleighs which were employed in the winter when the weather was at its worst, and
seventeen horses. The car barns and stables were located at the end of the ling, just above Cedar Street (later this
portion was renamed Bridgeport Road) on the east side of King Street, in Waterloo. In Berlin (renamed Kitchener in
1916), the line ended at Scott Street. A branch line also extended from King Street to the Grand Trunk Railway
station (later Canadian National Railways), near the intersection of Victoria and Weber Streets, Berlin. Originally
the track for the horse car line was located along the north side of King Street.

In 1895, service was greatly improved when the line was electrified. The tracks were also relocated to the centre of
the street. Three former closed horse cars were modified for electric operation by having vestibules added and the
necessary electrical equipment installed. The first electric car ran on May 18, 1895. So if the cars for the new LRT
arrive in time to start running in 2017, it will be 122 years after the first original!

The converted horse cars proved unsuitable as electric cars and the condition of the trackage was becoming
critical. The management, however, was un-willing to spend the monies necessary to upgrade the system. As a
result, the company was sold in 1896 to a new group headed by E. C. Breithaupt. This new management
immediately purchased two open and two closed car bodies from the General Electric Company of Peterborough,
Ontario, along with two Peckham trucks. The trucks were placed under the open cars for summer operation, being
switched to the closed bodied cars each winter. Power for the electric cars was supplied by the electric plant of the
Berlin Gas Company which was located at Charles and Gaukel Streets. This plant remained in operation until May
28, 1958.

Early in 1905, power for the street railway no longer came from the Berlin Gas Company, but from a new steam
power house that was built at the corner of King Street and Albert Street (later renamed Madison Avenue) in Berlin.
A new carbarn was also built at this same location, replacing the original Waterloo carbarn, as the line had been
extended from Scott to Albert Street the previous year.

In 1906, the Berlin Town Council instituted a move to take over the street railway. After a session of hearings that
lasted most of the summer, Berlin was given permission December 29, 1906 to purchase the street railway.
However, it was not until May 1, 1907 that the town actually acquired the railway, at a cost of $83,200 CAD, after
voters approved the purchase.

Four cars were added to the fleet the following year, one new and three second-hand. The new car, #10, was
assigned to carry mail from the post office on King Street, Berlin, to the railway station. There the mail was
transferred to the steam railway.

During 1910, the line was double tracked from Water Street to Albert Street. More double tracking was done in
later years. 1910 also saw hydroelectric power come to Berlin, thanks to Sir Adam Beck. The street railway began
using power supplied by the Ontario Hydro Electric Power System in October of that same year. By June 1913, the
Berlin & Waterloo Street Railway had 5.09 miles of track and a fleet of 19 cars.

The Preston & Berlin Street Railway (renamed the Grand River Railway in 1914) began operating into Berlin on
October 6, 1904. The P. & B. had its trackage on a marginal right-of-way along the south side of King Street to a
point just east of Stirling Avenue where the freight line split off in a south-west direction on a private right-of-way.
The passenger line swung to the centre of King Street and continued west to Albert Street, and from there through
downtown Berlin to Water Street sharing trackage with the street railway. This practice was discontinued in 1921
when the Grand River Railway put larger cars into service with the conversion from 600 to 1500 volt operation.
The Grand River Railway constructed a new cut-off line from Kitchener Junction to Courtland Avenue where it
rejoined the freight line.



Dorman, CYB 1905-1918

Double Tracking King Street Berlin
L.

This may be
car #58
decorated
as the
“Tonnerville
Trolley”




|
This change resulted in the street railway taking over the trackage of the Grand River Railway from Albert Street to
Kitchener Junction. A new waiting room was built at this point for the convenience of passengers transferring
between the street railway and the Grand River Railway cars. Use of the Albert Street carbarn was discontinued
when a new carbarn was built in 1923, directly across the road from the Kitchener Junction loop. This carbarn
remained in use after the streetcar system was converted to trolley coach, and was also used for motor bus service
and storage until replaced in November 1976 by a new operations and maintenance facility on Strasburg Road in
Kitchener. Interestingly, the new LRT carbarn is located on property immediately adjacent the 404 Wing in Waterloo
where the Waterloo Coin Society meets monthly.

In 1912, two double truck cards, 22 and 24, were purchased from Preston Car & Coach to handle the increasing
traffic. In 1919, three Kuhlman built double truck cars, 26,28, and 30, were purchased used from the Cleveland
Railway Company. Five Peter Witt cars were obtained from Cleveland in 1922, these becoming 32, 34, 36, 38 and
40 in Kitchener. The Witt cars continued in base service until streetcar service ended. The Berlin & Bridgeport
Electric Street Railway Company operated five miles of the line. It was incorporated on January 7, 1901 and
opened July 14, 1902 for regular traffic as far as a new sugar beet plant then being built. On August 1 of that
same year, service was extended to Bridgeport following completion of construction. The Berlin & Bridgeport
rostered only one car, #11, and used other cars from the Berlin & Waterloo Street Railway as required. The Berlin
& Bridgeport service operated from the Berlin Town Hall, at Scott Street, over Berlin & Waterloo Railway trackage
on King and Water Streets as far as Weber Street, from which point they proceeded over their own trackage to
Bridgeport. In 1912, the name of the Berlin & Bridgeport was changed to the Berlin & Northern Railway Company
and was granted powers to build an extension to Elora and Fergus. The extension was never built. In 1919, the
name was again changed, this time to the Waterloo Wellington Railway Company. Partial grading of a right-of-way
was done from the Bridgeport terminus with plans to extend to Guelph. It is unknown whether any track was every
laid. A new two stall carbarn was built at Bridgeport in 1923. It is believed that this line was leased to and
operated by the Berlin & Waterloo Street Railway until it was taken over by the City of Kitchener in 1923. The line
then lost its identity becoming just another route of the Kitchener & Waterloo Street Railway.

Two steel single truck Birney safety cars were purchased by the Kitchener & Waterloo Street Railway in 1923 from
the Ottawa Car Manufacturing Company. These were numbered 62 and 64. They were regularly assigned to the
Bridgeport line after its acquisition. Eventually, the operation of the Kitchener & Waterloo Street Railway became
the responsibility of the Kitchener Public Utilities Commission—Street Railway Department. In 1938, the P.U.C.
took over a private cross-town bus line then operated by Sanford Fisher and Mr. H. Appell. The City of Kitchener
first began bus operation on May 1 with a fleet of five G. M. Yellow Coach buses. Three Ford Transit buses were
purchased in 1940 permitting the abandonment of streetcar service on the Bridgeport line June 1, replaced by
buses the following morning. The former Berlin & Bridgeport trackage was then pulled up as far as Weber Street.
Service to the C.N.R. station was discontinued in 1941 with those rails being lifted the same year. By 1942 track
mileage had shrunk from a system total of 10.35 to 6.82 miles. This mileage remained for the duration of streetcar
service. Streetcar operations in Kitchener came to an abrupt end on December 27, 1946, 59 years after service
first began. Abandonment had been scheduled for December 31, however a severe sleet storm hit Southern
Ontario on the evening of December 27 causing the old streetcar overhead wire to snap in three places. As well,
the rails filled with ice and snow completely shutting down the service. The cost of repairs could not be justified
when only four days remained until trolley coaches were to go into operation replacing the streetcars.

New Year's Day 1947 saw the introduction of trolley coach operation on a single 4.5 mile route along King Street in
the twin cities of Kitchener-Waterloo. (The City of Waterloo purchases its transit service from the City of Kitchener).
Initially ten Brill T44 trolley coaches were obtained from Canadian Car & Foundry to implement trolley coach
service. As the result of a higher than expected increase in ridership, another five were purchased in 1948 and one
more in 1949. When Ottawa shut down their trolley coach operation, Kitchener PUC picked up five T48A coaches
from there. These came in September 1959 and were destined to be the last trolley coaches purchased by
Kitchener. All trolley coaches remained in service, until replaced by diesel buses in 1973, with one exception. An
electrical fire caused heavy damage to #119 on December 28, 1970 and it was scrapped as a result. Following the
morning rush hour on March 26, 1973, diesel buses replaced the trolleys as they arrived at the Kitchener end of
the route. With the arrival of trolley coach #107, the era of electric public transit in the city of Kitchener drew to a
close.



